
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lO

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

BRENT THORNTON SMITH 
251 South Oak Park Blvd., #19 
Grover Beach, CA 93433-4209 

Phannacy Technician License No. TCH 18791 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2462 

DEFAULT DECISION 
AND ORDER 

[Gov.Cod~ §11520] 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On or about December 28, 2001, Complainant Patricia F. Harris, in her 

official capacity as Executive Officer of the Board ofPhannacy, Department of Consumer 

Affairs, State of California, filed Accusation No. 2462 against Brent Thornton Smith 

(Respondent) before the Board ofPharmacy (Board). 

2. On or about March 29, 1996, the Board of Pharmacy issued Phannacy 

Technician License Number TCH 18791 to Respondent. The Pharmacy Technician License was 

in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on June 

30, 2003, unless renewed. 

3. On or about January 7, 2002, G. Griffith, an employee of the Department 

of Justice, served by Certified and First Class Mail a copy of the Accusation (Case No. 2462), 

Statement to Respondent, Notice ofDefense, Request for Discovery, and Government Code 

sections 11507.5, 11507.6, and 11507.7 to Respondent's address of record with the Board, which 
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was and is 251 South Oak Park Blvd., #19, Grover Beach, CA 93433-4209. Copies were also 

sent to the following additional addresses: 496 Aspen #212C, Arroyo Grande, CA 93420, and 

4092 N. Chestnut, #263, Fresno, CA 93726. A copy of the Accusation, the related documents, 

and Declaration of Service are incorporated herein by reference. 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the 

provisions of Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c). 

5. On or about January 8, 2002, Respondent signed a certified mail receipt 

for the aforementioned documents. 

6. Government Code section 11506 states in pertinent part: 

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent 

files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts of the 

accusation not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall constitute a waiver of 

respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing. 

7. Respondent failed to file a Notice ofDefense within 15 days after service 

of the Accusation and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the merits of the Accusation 

(Case No. 2462.) 

8. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part: 

(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the 

hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions or upon 

other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to respondent. 

9. Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board 

finds Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on 

Respondent's express admissions by way ofdefault and the evidence before it finds that the 

allegations in the Accusation (Case No. 2462) are true. 

10. The total costs for investigation and enforcement are $1,138.50 as of 

February 13, 2002. 
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DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 


1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Brent Thornton Smith 

has subjected his Pharmacy Technician License Number TCH 18791 to discipline. 

2. A copy of the Accusation and the related documents are incorporated 

herein by reference. 

3. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

4. The Board ofPhannacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Pharmacy 

Technician License based upon Business and Professions Code sections 4301(f), (h), G), (k), (1), 

and 4060 as alleged in the Accusation. 

ORDER 

IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy Technician License Number TCH 18791, 

heretofore issued to Respondent Brent Thornton Smith, is revoked. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may 

serve a written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on 

within seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion 

may vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the 

statute. 

This Decision shall become effective on April 28, 2002 

It is so ORDERED March 29, 2002 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUIVIERAFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

03583110-LA200IAD2135 
krk 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

THOMAS L. RINALDI, State Bar No. 206911 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-2541 
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

BRENT THORNTON SMITH, 
251 South Oak Park Blvd., #19 
Grover Beach, CA 93433-4209 

Pharn1acy Technician License No. TCH 18791 

Respondent. 

Case No. 

OAR No. 

ACCUSATION 

COlnplainant alleges: 


PARTIES 


1. Patricia F. Harris (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her 

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board ofPhannacy, Department of Consumer 

Affairs. 

2. On or about March 29, 1996, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy 

Technician License Number TCH 18791 to Brent Thornton Smith (Respondent). The Pharmacy 

Technician License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein 

and will expire on June 30, 2003, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION 

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), under 

the authority of the following sections of the Business and Professions Code (Code). 
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4. Section 4301 of the Code states: 

The Board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 

unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or 

issued by tuistake. Unprofe.ssional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the 

following: 

(f) The comnlission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, 

deceit, or comlption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or 

otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. 

(h) The adtuinistering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any 

dangerous dnlg or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or 

injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 

4000) of the Business and Professions Code, or to any other person or to the public, or to the 

extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the 

practice authorized by the license. 

U) The violation of any of the statutes of this state or of the United States 

regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs. 

(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving the 

use, consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any 

combination of those substances. 

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

and duties of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the Business and 

Professions Code. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with 

Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled substances or ofa 

violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be 

conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall 
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be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conyiction occurred. The board may inquire into 

the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of 

discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous dnlgs, 

to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications, 

functions, and duties of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the 

Business and Professions Code. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of 

nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The board 

Inay take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been 

affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the ilnposition of 

sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the 

person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the 

verdict of guilty, or dislnissing the accusation, information, or indictnlent. 

5. Section 4060 of the Code states: 


No person shall possess any contro lIed substance, except that funlished to a 


person upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, or veterinarian, or furnished 

pursuant to a dnlg order issued by a physician assistant pursuant to Section 3502.1 or a nurse 

practitioner pursuant to Section 2836.1. This section shall not apply to the possession of any 

controlled substance by a manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, physician, podiatrist, dentist, 

veterinarian, physician assistant, or nurse practitioner, when in stock in containers correctly 

labeled with the name and address of the supplier or producer. 

Nothing in this section authorizes a nurse practitioner or a physician assistant to 

order his or her own stock of dangerous dnlgs and devices. 

6. Title 16, California Code of Regulations, section 1770 states that for the 

purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license pursuant to Division 

1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a crime or act shall be 

considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee or 

registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee or 

registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent 
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with the public health, safety, or welfare. 

7. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board Inay 

request the administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or 

violations of the licensing a..ct to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcement of the case. 

DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS 

8. a. Lorazepam or Ativan is a schedule IV dnlg as defined in Health and 

Safety Code section 11057. This drug's intended use is as an antianxiety, anticonvulsant or a 

sedative and is in the benzodiazepin group. 

b. Temazepam or Restoril is a schedule IV dnlg as defined in Health and 

Safety Code section 11057. This drug's intended use is as an antianxiety, anticonvulsant or a 

sedative and is in the benzodiazepin group. 

c. Paxil is an anti-depressant used for obsessive cOlnpulsive and panic 

disorders and is presumed to be linked to potentiation of serotonergic activity in the central 

nervous system. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Conviction) 

9. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 430l(f), (h), U), 

(k), and (1) of the Code for unprofessional conduct in conjunction with Title 16'Califomia Code 

of Regulations section 1770 in that Respondent was convicted of a substantially related crime. 

The circumstances are as follows: 

10. On or about November 9,2000, Respondent, in the Superior Court of 

California, County of San Luis Obispo, in case number M000303844, entitled People v. Brent 

Thorton Smith, pled no contest to one count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152(a), driving 

under the influence of alcohol or dnlgs. The circumstances of the crime are as follows: 

a. On or about September 12, 2000, Respondent was speeding, driving 

recklessly and struck a guardrail in the center divider of the U.S. 101 freeway. 

/ / / 
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b. Respondent was under the influence of and was found to be in possession 

ofLorazepam and Temazepam in an unmarked container and without a prescription. 

c. Respondent performed and failed a series .of field sobriety tests. 

d. Respondent consented to and completed a blood test at Arroyo Grande 

Hospital. The blood tests results showed positive levels ofBenzodiazepines, Opiates and 

Cannabinoid. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Possession of Controlled Substances) 

11. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 4301 (f), (h), 

and (j), and 4060 of the Code for unprofessional conduct in that Respondent was in possession of 

controlled substances without a prescription. The circumstances are those described above in 

paragraph 10. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board ofPharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Teclmician License Number TCH 

18791, issued to Brent Thonlton Smith; 

2. Ordering Brent Thornton Slnith to pay the Board of Pharmacy the 

reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 125.3; 

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: /~ Ilt g/Ol 


PATRICIAF. HARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board ofPharmacy , 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

03583110~LA2001AD2135 

krk:11-20-01 
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